
                   AGENDA FOR REGULAR MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 16, 2009    Page 1  of  2 
 

 
P.O. BOX 675 ▪ 61750 CHOLLITA ROAD ▪ JOSHUA TREE ▪ CALIFORNIA 92252 

TELEPHONE (760) 366-8438    FAX (760) 366-9528    E-MAIL  jbwd@jbwd.com 
 

JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

WEDNESDAY SEPTEMBER 16, 2009, 7:00 PM 
61750 CHOLLITA ROAD, JOSHUA TREE, CA  92252 

 
 

AGENDA 
     

 1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

 2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

 3. DETERMINATION OF QUORUM 
 

 4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

 5. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

 
Pages 1-3 
Pages 4-29 
  

6. CONSENT CALENDAR 
A. Approve Minutes of the Special Meeting of August 19, 2009 
B. Approve Financial Report for July 2009 
 

Pages 30-36 7. WASTEWATER CAPACITY CHARGE 
 
Recommend that the Board take the following action: (1) adopt resolution 09-851 
establishing a capacity charge of $5,270.00 per equivalent dwelling unit, (2) amend the 
district rules and regulations implementing the fee, (3) and consider exempting the first 
25 equivalent dwelling units prior to September 1st, 2010.  
  

Pages 37 8. ACWA REGION 9 ELECTION OF OFFICERS AND BOARD MEMBERS 
 
Recommend that the Board cast a ballot for Art Bishop for ACWA Region 9 Board 
Member.   
 

Pages 38 9. PURCHASE OF USED TRACTOR  
Recommend that the Board authorize the purchase of a pre-owned John Deere 210 
tractor from RDO at a cost not to exceed $30,000.00. 



                   AGENDA FOR REGULAR MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 16, 2009    Page 2  of  2 
 

 11. GENERAL MANAGER COMPENSATION 
 
Recommend that the Board set the compensation for the General Manager based on 
performance and amend the employment agreement with the General Manager as 
necessary.    
 

Pages 39-41 12. PROJECT PRIORITY LIST 
 
An update on staff’s progress with assigned projects. 
 

 13. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

  14. GENERAL MANAGER REPORT 
 

  15. DIRECTOR COMMENTS/REPORTS 
 

 16. ADJOURNMENT 

  
 

The Board of Directors reserves the right to take action on items reserved for discussion only. 
  
INFORMATION 
During either "Public Comment” Item, please use the podium microphone.  State your name and have your 
information prepared and be ready to provide your comments to the Board.  The District is interested and appreciates 
your comments.  A 3-minute time limit may be imposed.  Thank you. 
 
Any person with a disability who requires accommodation in order to participate in this meeting should telephone 
Joshua Basin Water District at (760) 366-8438, at least 48 hours prior to the meeting in order to make a request for a 
disability-related modification or accommodation. 
 
Materials related to an item on this Agenda submitted to the Board of Directors after distribution of the agenda packet 
are available for public inspection in the District’s office located at 61750 Chollita Road, Joshua Tree, California 
92252 during normal business hours. 
 
 

 



 

1                                                  Special Meeting of August 19, 2009 

JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT 
Minutes of the 

SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
August 19, 2009 

Held at the JBWD Boardroom, 61750 Chollita Road, Joshua Tree, CA 92277  
and by Teleconference at 2228 Centralia/Alpha Road, Space G-23 

Chehalis, WA  98532 
 
 
 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER    4:00 PM 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
3. DETERMINATION OF QUORUM: By roll-call: 
       Gary Given  Present via Teleconference 
       Bill Long  Present 
       Mickey Luckman Present 
       Mike Reynolds Present 
       Gary Wilson  Present 
 
 STAFF PRESENT:   Joe Guzzetta, General Manager 
      Susan Greer, Assistant GM/Controller 
      Marie Salsberry, Executive Secretary 
 
 
 GUESTS:  4 
 
 
4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
MSC Luckman/Given 5/0 to approve the agenda for the August 19, 2009 Special Meeting of the 

Board of Directors. 
Roll call vote: 
   Given  Aye 
   Long  Aye 
   Luckman Aye 
   Reynolds Aye 
   Wilson Aye 
 
5. PUBLIC COMMENT 
Al Marquez of Joshua Tree commented he is concerned that not many Joshua Basin ratepayers 

are in attendance; he believes people think attending the Hi-Desert Water District 
meeting is more important now. 

 
6. CONSENT CALENDAR 
MSC Luckman/Reynolds 5/0 to approve the minutes of the Regular Meeting of August 5, 2009 

and to approve the minutes of the Special Meeting of August 5, 2009. 
Roll call vote: 



 

2                                                  Special Meeting of August 19, 2009 

   Given  Aye 
   Long  Aye 
   Luckman Aye 
   Reynolds Aye 
   Wilson Aye 
 
7. CONSIDER AUTHORIZING STAFF TO WRITE-OFF BAD DEBT FOR FISCAL YEAR 

08/09 
Assistant General Manager Greer reported; the Water Account Assistant Program was down for 

last year, but other bad debt increased due to attempts to charge monthly fees for 
unused meters. 

MSC Long/Given 5/0 to approve staff recommendation to authorize staff to write off the bad debt 
for fiscal year 08/09 in the amount of $23,291.81. 

Roll call vote: 
   Given  Aye 
   Long  Aye 
   Luckman Aye 
   Reynolds Aye 
   Wilson Aye 
 
8. FUNDS FOR COMPLETION OF URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN 
General Manager Guzzetta reported that, since the initial submission of the District’s Urban 

Water Management Plan in December of 2005, the Department of Water Resources has 
requested more information and more detail than what was anticipated or required in 
2005.  The updates required extra work by Dudek and Associates Engineers.  Board 
discussion ensued. 

MSC Long/Reynolds 5/0 to approve staff recommendation to authorize an increase of $4,700 to 
Dudek & Associates District Engineers for completion of the Urban Water Management 
Plan certification by the Department of water Resources. 

Roll call vote: 
   Given  Aye 
   Long  Aye 
   Luckman Aye 
   Reynolds Aye 
   Wilson Aye 
 
9. PROJECT PRIORITY LIST 
GM Guzzetta reported that the Wastewater Treatment Strategy and Package Treatment Plant 

Policy have been completed. 
 
10. PUBLIC COMMENT 
Al Marquez of Joshua Tree commented he did not understand Item 15, a closed session item 

regarding property acquisition.  He requested that the District be more descriptive of 
Closed Session items. 

 
11. GENERAL MANAGER REPORT 
GM Guzzetta reported that District Counsel was asked if it is acceptable to schedule a Regular 

and Special meeting at the same time; the District’s attorney Gil Granito replied that it is 
acceptable practice and he will issue a written memo on the subject. 

 



 

3                                                  Special Meeting of August 19, 2009 

 
12. DIRECTOR COMMENTS/REPORTS 
Director Wilson asked about a public hearing notice that appeared in the paper.  He reported on 

a committee meeting that he took part in with management and field staff; the topic was 
leaks and fire flow in the system. 

 
The Board went to closed session at 4:37 pm. 
13. CLOSED SESSION 
 A closed session held to confer with legal counsel on a matter of potential 

litigation pursuant to subdivision (c) of Government Code Section 54956.9 – One 
Matter – Potential Litigation 

 
14. CLOSED SESSION 
 Public employee performance evaluation; General Manager.  Pursuant to 

Government Code 54957(b). 
 
15. CLOSED SESSION 
 Property Acquisition; pursuant to Government Code 54956.8, Conference with Real 

Property Negotiator regarding price and terms.  District negotiator:  Joe Guzzetta.  
APN:  603-231-05; 603-231-06; 603-191-41. 

 
16. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION ITEMS 
The meeting returned to open session at 6:00 pm.  Vice President Long stated that no 

reportable action had been taken during closed session.  President Given left the meeting 
following the closed session. 

 
17. ADJOURNMENT  6:00 PM 
MSC Luckman/Reynolds 4/0 (1 absent) to adjourn the August 19, 2009 Special Meeting of the 

Joshua Basin Water District Board of Directors. 
   Given  Absent 
   Long  Aye 
   Luckman Aye 
   Reynolds Aye 
   Wilson Aye 
 

Respectfully submitted; 
 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Joe Guzzetta, General Manager 
 
The next Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors is scheduled for September 2, 2009. 

























































two EDU’s and pay twice the fee; a triplex would be 3 EDU’s 
and pay three times the fee, etc.  The number of EDU’s for a 
particular project other than single family residence could be 
adjusted by the District Engineer.  For example, a Senior 
Citizen complex with 100 small apartments might be calculated 
at less than 100 EDU’s.  The District Engineer would determine 
the EDU’s for all commercial property taking into account the 
use, number of plumbing fixtures, building size, etc. 
   
The Waste Water Strategy identified 7,000 parcels in one third 
of the District (35 square miles), mostly along Twentynine 
Palms Highway, where densities are currently zoned at rates 
that would require new development to provide waste water 
treatment. 
 
The Baldy View Building Industry Association has asked the 
District to consider delaying the implementation of the fee for 
one year for at least 100 units in order not to impede 
economic recovery.  The District has issued 6 meters during 
the first eight months of this year.  Given that, staff would 
recommend considering delaying the fee until September 1, 
2010, or until building permits are issued for construction of 25 
EDU’s whichever comes first.  District’s Legal Counsel advises 
that the District may not distinguish between single family, 
multi family, or commercial, or other uses in deferring 
implementation for 25 EDU’s.   
 
The attached resolution proposes changes to the District Rules 
and Regulations that will acknowledge the new fee.  For 
example, certain sections that previously referenced “water” 
now reference “water and wastewater.”  Another example is 
that the changes allow for reimbursement agreements for 
wastewater lines as well as water lines. 
 
This fee is a critical element of the District’s Waste Water 
Strategy.  Simplified, the overall strategy provides for a three-
prong mechanism to address the future waste water needs of 
Joshua Tree: 
 
1)  In compliance with the orders of the Colorado River Basin 
Regional Water Quality Control Board, local “package waste 
water treatment plants” will be installed by developers in 
projects exceeding 15 units.  They will be designed to JBWD 
specifications, and will typically be owned and operated by 
JBWD.  A “community facilities district” will be established 
only for those properties served by the package treatment 
plant to provide an annual fee that will pay for replacement 
of the package plant.  The cost will vary depending on the size 



of the project and type of package plant, but could be in the 
$200 to $500 per year range, with a typical life of 15 years.  If 
the customers within the community facilities district later 
connect to a central waste water treatment plant, funds 
remaining in the community facilities district could be used to 
help connect to the new plant. 
 
1.a)  Depending on location, size, and other factors, the 
package treatment plants may have the flexibility of being tied 
into larger future package plants.  For example, two small 
package plants might be moved or eliminated and tied into a 
larger package plant that becomes available in the same 
vicinity at a later time.  The system needs to be flexible 
because there is no way to know in advance, what areas will 
develop and to what extent. 
 
2)  Eventually it is expected that there will be enough users on 
package treatment plants to justify eliminating the package 
plants and connecting to a centralized waste water 
treatment plant.  In order to pay for the central treatment 
plant, every property within the waste water zone will pay a 
$5.270 capacity fee at the time they develop.  The fee will be 
placed in a fund until it is time to construct the central plant.  
and main transmission lines.  Smaller lines would be paid by 
developers and/or from funds remaining in the community 
facilities district accounts (number 1 above). 
 
3)  Customers on a new waste water system will receive a 
monthly fee for maintenance of the package treatment 
plant and collection system.  The cost would vary significantly 
depending on size, from $15 per month to $70 per month, in 
addition to administrative and billing costs. 
  
This strategy provides for an equitable way for future 
development to pay for the costs of wastewater treatment, 
assuring that the ground water is protected, and in a way that 
doesn’t force existing customers to pay unless they later 
connect to the system.  While this adds a cost to new builders, 
the cost of not addressing wastewater early leaves fewer, 
more onerous options for future Boards to consider. 

 



1                                     RESOLUTION 07-807  

RESOLUTION NO. 09-851 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT 

ESTABLISHING WASTEWATER CAPACITY CHARGES 
 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Joshua Basin Water District contracted for a 

Wastewater Strategy Study that identified the geographical areas of the District that will be 
subject to connecting to a Central Wastewater Treatment and Collection System; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Study further identified the capacity, type, and general location for a 

Central Wastewater Treatment Plant; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Study also identified the sizes, lengths, and general locations of the 

wastewater collection system and other related facilities that will be needed to transport 
wastewater to the  Central Wastewater Treatment Plant; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Study included a comprehensive Rate and Fee analysis for Wastewater 

Capacity Charges (referred to as “Connection Fees” in the Study) that will be necessary to pay 
for the cost of the Central Wastewater Treatment Plant, Collection System, and related facilities; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, a public meeting was appropriately noticed in accordance with Government 

Code Section 6066 and subsequently held today to review the proposed Wastewater Capacity 
Charges. 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Wastewater Capacity Charges set forth 

below are hereby adopted.  Said charges shall be imposed only as a condition of taking out a 
building permit for construction of new single-family housing units, multi-family housing units, 
and non-housing construction that results in the requirement for one or more equivalent dwelling 
unit of capacity in the Central Wastewater Treatment Plant, or which connects to the Central 
Wastewater Treatment Plant; and   

 
RESOLVED FURTHER, the Sewer Capacity Fee is exempt from compliance with the 

California Environmental Quality Act, pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Sections 15002(d) and 
15378(b)(4); and 

 
RESOLVED FURTHER AND DETERMINED that the Capacity Charges set forth below 

are reasonably related to the costs of providing services or facilities for which said charges are 
imposed; and 

 



2                                     RESOLUTION 07-807  

RESOLVED FURTHER that the following sections of Article 13 of the District’s Rules 
and Regulations are hereby amended to specifically apply to the Central Wastewater Treatment 
and Collection System: 

Article 13.1 Variance Application Processing Fee 
A fee of $25.00 is payable upon the submission of a variance Application for water and 
wastewater facilities.  If the District determines that a complex matter requires that professional 
services be obtained, the applicant will pay all of the cost of such services. 

Article 13.14 Mainline Extension Project application Fee 
An application fee of $25.00 will be charged for all Mainline Extension applications, either 
residential or commercial, for water and wastewater facilities. 

Add Article 13.16.1 Standard Wastewater Front Footage Fee  
This fee applies to waste water service applicants that connect to the wastewater system where 
the District has installed or replaced a mainline.  The standard Wastewater Front Footage Fee 
will be the amount of the most recently calculated front footage reimbursement fee as 
approved by the Board of Directors. 

Article 13.17 Plan Check and Processing and Inspection Fees 
The cost of plan check and processing, feasibility studies and inspection shall be borne by the 
applicant for water and wastewater facilities.  Fees shall be the actual cost of services plus 15% 
for District administration.  The District will provide a written estimate of the fees to the 
applicant who must deposit the same amount with the District prior to commencement of work.  
If the fees deposited are insufficient to pay all costs incurred by the District, a bill for the balance 
will be sent to the applicant and must be paid before water service will be initiated; or before a 
Wastewater Certificate of Compliance will be issued. 
 Article 13.19 Capacity Charges is amended to read Wastewater Capacity Charges 
 Add Article 13.19.1 Wastewater Capacity Charges 
This charge is used to provide for a source of wastewater treatment, pumping, collection, 
transmission, and related facilities needed as a result of new demands caused by new single 
family residential, multi family residential, commercial, industrial, and agricultural 
development.  It is a charged levied on each new development that will contribute a rightful 
share of the costs of the District’s wastewater facilities.  The Capacity Charges shall be 
computed by the District and collected as follows and shall be automatically adjusted effective 
on the 1st day of January of each calendar year following the adoption of Resolution #09-851 
(For example, 1/1/2011) based upon the change in the engineering News-Record Construction 
Cost Index – Los Angeles (ENR-CCI LA) starting from the base month of June, 2009.  For 
example, the first automatic increase taking effect 1/1/20011 shall be based on the increase in 
said index from June, 2009 to June, 2010.  The second automatic increase taking effect 
1/1/2012 shall be based on the increase in said index from June, 2010 to June 2011 and so 
forth. 
 
Single Family Residential:  1 Equivalent Dwelling Unit (EDU) = $5,270 
Multi Family Residential:  1 EDU per residential unit (duplex = 2 units, tri-plex = 3 units, 
etc) or less if determined by the District Engineer (e.g. Senior Housing, studio apartments, 
etc.). 



3                                     RESOLUTION 07-807  

Non Residential:  $5,270 per EDU with the number of EDU’s to be determined by District 
Engineer based on plans provided. 
The Wastewater Capacity Charge applies to all new development in the Wastewater 
Planning Area as identified in the attached map.  A list of parcels within the area is 
attached as appendix _ 
Capacity Charges do not apply to additions to existing residential units, but will apply to 
any new residential structures, including a second home on a parcel, other than guest 
house.   
Capacity fees will be applied to expansion of non-residential development if it increases the 
number of EDU’s by one or more based on review of the District Engineer. 
 
Fee will be collected at the District’s option either with the “will-serve” letter, or prior to 
issuance of a Building Permit, but in any case no later than the time of Certificate of 
Occupancy as feasible in each case to assure that the District receives payment. 
 

RESOLVED FURTHER that upon satisfying all District requirements a Certificate of 
Wastewater Compliance or similar document will be issued so that the County may issue a 
building permit.      
 

RESOLVED FURTHER that any other reference to the Basic Facilities Charge contained 
in the Rules and Regulations or other District documents has the same meaning as the Capacity 
Charge; and. 

 
RESOLVED FURTHER that the effective date of this resolution shall be September 17, 

2009 with the following exceptions: 
 Exemption (Deferred Implementation Date) - All affected new development projects will 
be exempt from imposition of the Wastewater Capacity Charge until the earlier of (1) the date 
affected new development projects, in the aggregate reach a level of 25 EDU's, as determined by 
the District's Engineer, or (2) September 1, 2010.  Thereafter, all affected new development 
projects will be subject to the Wastewater Capacity Charge. 
 
 
 APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 16th day of September, 2009. 
 
 
      ___________________________________ 
      Gary Given, President, JBWD 
        
 

ATTEST: 
 
 

____________________________________ 
Joe Guzzetta, Secretary, JBWD 









Updated    9/10/2009                  Page 1 

Project Priority List 
 
PROJECTS NEARING COMPLETION 
Miscellaneous Pipeline Replacement Project:  Juniper north of Hwy 62, Veterans Way 
and Center St. between Chollita Rd. and Commercial St., easement behind Hwy 62 
(south side) between El Reposo Circle and Sunset Rd., easement behind Hwy 62 (south 
side) Conejo Ave. and Outpost Rd; Torres Ave., Division St., San Angelo Way; 
Sunflower Rd., Sun Mesa Rd. between Sunever Ave. and Sun Kist Rd. 
Project is ready to go to bid, awaiting possible grant funds. 
Conservation Landscape Demonstration Garden & Residential Landscape Designs  
The Board awarded contract for construction at July 15th Board meeting. 
Review of Community Service District (CSD)  
The Board referred to the Citizens Advisory Committee consideration of the impacts of a 
CSD on Joshua Basin Water District.  Committee recommendations were presented at the 
July 18th 2007 Board meeting and continued to a later date. 
Conduct Fee Study (Susan) 
Water rates, capacity and inter-agency fee studies have been completed.  Miscellaneous 
fees are being developed, based upon resources used – staff, vehicle, equipment, etc. 
Well #16   (Joe Bocanegra)   
Pending resolution of Well #17 since the two wells will be completed at the same time. 
Personnel Policy Manual (Joe Guzzetta) 
Completed and under review by the labor counsel. 
Landscape Ordinance (Joe Guzzetta) 
AWAC will draft a new model ordinance to comply with new state legislation AB 8118 
 
PROJECTS UNDERWAY 
Implement “Best Management Practices” of the California Urban Water Conservation 
Council (Terry Spurrier) 
Report will be presented to the Board in October.  
Develop Public Outreach Program 
The Ad Hoc committee met July 16.  Public information for the Groundwater Recharge 
Project and the Water and Land Use Forum are underway. 
Land Use/Water Policy Forum (Joe Guzzetta) 
Staff and Ad Hoc Public Information committee met with Water Resources Institute to 
continue planning for a forum.  Agreement with CSUSB was approved at March 18th 
Board meeting. Planning for forum is ongoing. 
Record Archival System  (Susan) 
Staff had second presentation. 
Recharge Site Evaluation/USGS Study 
The Final EIR has been circulated and will be considered by the Board on September 23. 
C-2 Tank Relocation (Joe Bocanegra) 
Ready to go to bid pending funding. A USDA Grant Pre-Application has been submitted 
for this project. 
 
 
 



Updated    9/10/2009                  Page 2 

PROJECTS NOT BEGUN 
Final Phase of 4” Pipe Replacement  (Joe Guzzetta, Joe Bocanegra, Keith Faul) 
Staff met to more clearly define needed replacements. A request for proposals for 
engineering and design is being prepared.   
Develop/Update Board Policies and Procedures (Susan Greer) 
Emergency Preparedness/Response Exercises 
Update 3030 Plan (Joe Guzzetta) 
Staff intends to solicit proposals for this project. 
Equipment Carport at Shop  (Joe Bocanegra) 
Needs are being evaluated. 
Election to Charge Private Wells for Replacement Water 
Attorney is reviewing election options. 
 
PROJECTS COMPLETED 
Complete Wastewater Treatment Strategy and Implementation Mechanisms (Joe 
Guzzetta, Susan Greer, Joe Bocanegra) 
The Board adopted the Wastewater Strategy at the July 15th, 2009 meeting. 
Package Treatment Plant Policy Regarding Construction and Maintenance 
Complete with Board’s adoption of the Wastewater Treatment Strategy 
Site Security and Telemetry System Upgrades:   
Enhancements to security including motion sensors and intrusion alarms: complete. 
Tank Recoating (Joe Bocanegra) 
Completed and has been put into routine maintenance program. 
Replace Accounting Mainframe  (Susan) 
First water bills using new system were mailed. 
Emergency Generator (Joe Bocanegra) 
Generators have been delivered. 
Remote Meter Policy (Susan) 
Board has adopted revised policy. 
Website Development /Establish District Public Information Program (Joe Guzzetta) 
The website is up and running. 
Property Acquisition for Future Water Facilities  
Property acquisition consultant was selected at the September 9th Board meeting. 
Construction of H Zone Phase II Pipeline Replacement Project  
Completed.  Notice of Completion filed. 
Replace Line Printer (Susan) 
Replaced with smaller printers. 
Develop Cross-Connection Control Program  
Program is being implemented. 
Replace JD310 Tractor 
Complete. 
Replace Septic Tank at Shop 
Complete. 
Sewer Management Authority 
LAFCO designated JBWD as the wastewater authority on August 15th.   
Construction of H Zone Phase I Pipeline Replacement Project  
Construction of Phase I is complete.  



Updated    9/10/2009                  Page 3 

Well 17 Wellhead Construction 
Well became operational in July. 
Organization Study  
Completed.  Staff is implementing the study. 
Closed Circuit Security System  
Video monitoring system is in place. 
Safety Consultant; Program 
Initial safety plans are complete. 




